
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
Thursday, April 16, 2015 - 6:30 p.m.                           Assembly Chambers, 213 Haines Hwy. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE TO THE FLAG  
2. ROLL CALL  
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: March 12, 2015 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  [Items not scheduled for public hearing] 
6. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
7. STAFF REPORT 

A. Planning & Zoning Report 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

A. Haines Borough – Vacation of One Portion of Mathias Ave. Right-of-Way (ROW) – Action Item: Haines 
Borough requested the Planning Commission recommend the Assembly vacate one portion of the Mathias Ave. 
ROW, and transfer the vacated ROW to adjoining landowner Louise Smith in exchange for equal amount of Smith 
property to be made into a 15’ public sewer easement. Possible Motion: Recommend the Assembly vacate the said 
ROW.  

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None  
10. NEW BUSINESS:  

A. Historic District/Building Review: None 
B. Haines Borough Code Amendments: 

1. Lot Line Adjustment in HBC 18.100.025 – Action Item: This item is scheduled as a follow-up item of 03/12 
agenda. The draft ordinance is to allow lot line adjustments and lot consolidations resulting in lot(s) non-
conforming as to size. Motion: Recommend the Assembly adopt the proposed ordinance.  

C. Project Updates: None 
D. Other New Business:   

1. South Portage Cove Harbor Expansion Project – Discussion Item – PND has prepared the 65% design 
review submittal for the South Portage Cove Harbor Expansion project. The commission is invited to review and 
comment.   

11. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
12. CORRESPONDENCE 
13. SCHEDULE MEETING DATE 

A.      Regular Meeting – Thursday, May 14, 2015 6:30 p.m. 
14. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

COMMISSIONERS: 
 

ROB GOLDBERG, CHAIR 
LEE HEINMILLER, VICE-CHAIR 

ROBERT VENABLES 
HEATHER LENDE 

DON TURNER III 
BRENDA JOSEPHSON 

ROB MILLER  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG – Chairman Goldberg called the meeting to 
order at 6:30 p.m. in Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag.  

2. ROLL CALL – Present: Chairman Rob Goldberg, Commissioners Lee Heinmiller, Robert 
Venables (called in), Heather Lende (called in), Brenda Josephson, and Rob Miller. 
Absent: Don Turner III.  
Staff Present: David Sosa/Manager, Tracy Cui/Planning and Zoning Technician III, and 
Bill Mandeville/Community and Economic Development Director. 

Also Present: Mike Case (Assembly liaison), Sierra Jimenez, Jolanta Ryan, Stephen 
Henri, Glenda Gilbert, Roger Schnabel, Dave Smith, and Jon Hirsh.  

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Goldberg suggested combining Item 8B and 8C.  

Motion: Miller moved to “approve the agenda as amended.” Heinmiller seconded it. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 12, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Motion: Heinmiller moved to “approve the February 12, 2015 minutes as amended.” 
Miller seconded it. The motion carried unanimously. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 

6. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT – None  
7. STAFF REPORTS  

A. Planning & Zoning Staff Report 
Cui reported monthly permits and updates on projects. 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
A. ADOT&PF – Corner of Union Street and Allen Road – Maintenance Station 

Variance Proposal  
Goldberg opened the public hearing at 6:50 p.m. 

Henri spoke on behalf of ADOT&PF and requested the commission approve a height 
variance to allow the construction of a 32-foot-tall maintenance station to be built 
outside the Borough code requirement of a 30’ height restriction. This will be a new 
90’ by 120’ building to replace the existing facility. The size of road maintenance 
vehicles has tended to increase over time, which has required ADOT&PF to change 
the design of its maintenance stations to adequately service those vehicles. The 
additional height is needed to appropriately maintain the road maintenance vehicles. 

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission Meeting 

March 12, 2015 
MINUTES Draft  

  4



Gilbert spoke as the representative of the adjacent property owner. She said the 
proposed station will connect to the existing water and sewer mains off Main Street. 
However, no documentation demonstrates the existence of a utility easement.  

Henri said the drawing is only 35% complete. The state will work out an arrangement 
with the property owner or re-route the utility lines.  
Goldberg closed the public hearing at 6:55 p.m. 

Henri said the proposed structure is intended to connect to the public water and 
sewer systems. 

Miller suggested an oil/water separator to be installed to protect Sawmill Creek. 

Motion: Miller moved to “approve ADOT&PF’s height variance proposal to allow the 
maintenance station to be built up to 34’.” Josephson seconded it. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

B. C-208-TL-0400 – Top of 4th Ave. – Amendment to Resource Extraction 
Conditional Use Permit 
C-208-TL-03A0 – Top of 4th Ave. – Resource Extraction and Material Storage 
Conditional Use Permit 
Josephson recused herself.  
Goldberg opened the public hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
Schnabel said in the past few summers, there were many construction projects 
taking place in the Skyline area, and trucks were driven up and down Young Road 
frequently. However, if this conditional use proposal is approved, it will reduce the 
traffic burden on Young Road. Regarding the material storage, Schnabel said the 
concrete with rebar is very difficult and expensive to recycle. He asked the 
commission’s permission to allow him to move the concrete to the site. The concrete 
will be effectively recycled and reused in other projects. Additionally, asphalt is very 
good construction material; he would also like to move asphalt to the site. Storing 
construction material on the site will significantly save transportation costs. This will 
make him more competitive to provide services that cost less to the community.  

Jimenez, Ryan, and others spoke their concerns about traffic safety in residential 
areas. 
Sosa said the Borough code specifies different types of trash, such as garbage, 
rubble, and rubbish. His recommendation is to eliminate hazard materials, garbage, 
and rubbish.  

Hirsh said the proposed site is within the residential areas. The commission should 
not encourage industrial activities. 
Goldberg closed the public hearing at 7:30 p.m.  

Goldberg said he is sympathetic to the residents who do not like having trucks go 
past their residences. This gravel pit has provided gravel to the community for more 
than 50 years. One side of the pit has about 20,000 cubic yards of gravel, and the 
other side of the pit has about 5,000 cubic yards of gravel. The pit has a total of 
25,000 cubic yards of gravel with a life span of 20 years. It comes to 1,250 cubic 
yards/year. One truck hauls about 10 cubic yards of gravel, so it will be about 125 

 March 12, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 



trucks going to or from the pit in one year. If the construction season is four months 
long, then that will be one truck/day on average. 
Schnabel said the amount of material extracted from the pit will be roughly equal to 
the amount of material imported into the pit. He has no objection to the manager’s 
recommendation.  
Motion: Venables moved to “approve the proposed conditional use permit 
application with the conditions set forth in the manager’s recommendation letter.” 
Miller seconded it. The motion carried 4-1 with Lende opposed.  

More discussion ensued. 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  

10. NEW BUSINESS  
A. Historic District/Building Review – None  
B. Haines Borough Code Amendments – None  

 C.  Project Updates – None 
D. Other New Business  

1. Primary School Preliminary Plat Review 
The commission reviewed the plat, and pointed out there was an error in the title 
block and the chairman’s name was misspelled. 

Cui said the surveyor re-surveyed the subdivision based on the recommendations 
from the commission. Additionally, lots within blocks 3 and 4 are owned by the 
Borough and the school buildings were built on these lots. It was recommended to 
vacate these lot lines to consolidate them into one single lot. The commissioners 
spoke in favor of this recommendation. 

The commission also suggested keeping the library lot as rectangular. A 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)/easement can be written to allow one portion 
of the running track to remain on the library lot. 

Smith said an additional cost will be needed to complete the project.  

Cui said she will report these recommendations to the manager.  

2. Classification of Borough Land for Sale 
The commission suggested staff focus on some topics in more detail: estimated cost 
of the development; water and sewer infrastructure implementation; public safety 
concerns; real estate market impact analysis, and the potential partnering opportunity 
with private-sector developers. 

Goldberg suggested Turner and Lende conduct a site visit with staff to investigate 
these Borough-owned properties and take some pictures.  

3. Lot Line Adjustments Involving Lots Nonconforming as to Size 

Goldberg said the downtown area was originally platted in 1917 and the 
minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet was established in the 1970s. Almost 
none of the lots within the downtown area comply with this requirement. A lot line 
adjustment that results in creating non-conforming lots is prohibited by the 
existing code. The code does not allow downtown property owners to make any 

 March 12, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 



lot line adjustments on their properties. He believes the code needs to be amended 
to address this issue.  

Cui said she will draft the ordinance for commission review at the next regular 
meeting. 

11. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

Heinmiller summarized the previous CIA Wetland Committee meeting.                                                      

12. CORRESPONDENCE - None 

13. SET MEETING DATES 

A.  Regular Meeting—Thursday, April 16, 2015.  

14. ADJOURNMENT– 9:00 p.m.   

 March 12, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 



Staff Report for April 16, 2015 

1. Permits Issued Since March, 2015  

PERMIT DATE OWNER/AGENT PROPERTY ID LOT BLK SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT ZONE 
15-05 3/315 Paul Nelson C-SKY-0B-1700 17 B Skyline Estates SFR Renewal SR 
15-06 3/13/15 Harry Rietze 4-MBR-05-0100     Letnikof Cove Short Plat MB Cannery 

15-07 3/16/15 Saint James Place C-208-TL-03A0 3A   USS 208 
Resource Extraction 
and Material Storage RMU 

14-41(A) 3/16/15 Roger Schnabel C-208-TL-0400 4   USS 208 Material Storage RMU 
15-08 3/17/15 Dean Olsen C-PTC-0M-14A0 4A M Port Chilkoot  Temporary Residence SR 
15-09 3/17/15 ADOT       Union St & Allen Rd  Maintenance Station ILC 
15-10 3/18/15 ADOF       Union St & Allen Rd  Storage Shed & Carport ILC 
15-11 3/24/15 Lucy Tate C-HEM-01-0100 1 1 Hemlock Estates ROW_Repair Driveway SR 

15-12 3/26/15 Port Chilkoot Company C-PTC-0F-0000 
 

F Port Chilkook 
Interpretive Sculpture 

Garden SSA 
 

2. Enforcement Orders  

• Off-Premises Sign – In the past few years, the Borough noted community interest to modify the current off-premises sign regulations. 
Borough staff drafted the ordinance, and several public hearings were held to discuss the current prohibition on off-premises signs; 
however, the ordinance effort has languished. In light of this, the manager has asked me to proceed with enforcing the provisions of the 
current off-premises sign regulations.  

• Heliskiing Complaints – The Borough received three heliskiing complaints. I processed GPS data and produced graphics to support the 
investigations.  

3. Projects 

• AK FEMA Training Opportunity – Mr. Ken Hudson is working for the Alaska Division of Community and Regional Affairs, to visit Haines on 
05/04. This will be a training opportunity providing an overview of flood hazard management issues, practical flood risk reduction methods 
for the community and home owners, and the National Flood Insurance Program guidelines designed to help communities reduce risk to 
property and public safety. This information is intended to be helpful to community leaders, builders, surveyors, the public and any other 
entities that should have an understanding living with hazards from flooding.   

• The updated KMZ file was generated and published on Borough website for public use. 
• Addressing Project – Site visits will be conducted every Tuesday afternoon to verify physical addresses within the Townsite Service Area. I 

anticipate the project will be accomplished by June.  

7



 
HAINES BOROUGH 
Planning & Zoning 
P.O. Box 1209 
Haines, AK 99827-1209 
907-766-2231 Ext. 23 
907-766-2716 (fax) 
 
 

 

April 8, 2015 

To: Planning Commission 

Cc:  David Sosa, Manager 

  Carlos Jimenez, Public Facilities Director  

From: Tracy Cui, Planning & Zoning Technician III 

Re: Determine that One Portion of Mathias Ave. surpluses to its needs as a Right-of-Way and 
Recommend that the Assembly Vacate Said Right-of-Way 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
A portion of the Mathias Ave. ROW be vacated and transferred to adjoining landowner Louise Smith 
in exchange for equal amount of Smith property to be made into a utility easement.  
 
Background and Overview: 
 
Haines Borough Code (HBC) 18.60.010(I) requires “If property on which a use is proposed is within 
200 feet of an existing, adequate public water and/or sewer system, the developer shall be required 
to connect to the public systems”. In 2010, property owner Norm Smith submitted water & sewer 
services application to the Borough since the property is within 200 feet of the public systems. In 
reviewing the application, staff determined that there is not an adequate sewer main that is 
serviceable for his property. In addition, the sewer main on Mathias Ave. is not able to be buried to 
correct depth due to the elevation of the Young Road sewer main that it feeds into. There have been 
multiple cases in which the Mathias main has backed up into residential property and caused damage 
for which the Borough has been financially responsible to fix. In this case, while service is within 200 
feet it is not feasible to hook up these services without significant expense to Norm Smith and 
additional stress to an already compromised sewer main. 
 
Staff have been working with Norm Smith and adjacent property owners on trying to find a solution to 
the sewer service issue on his property. In general, the Borough has re-explored all of the options 
that have been considered over the last several years and have come up with the following feasible 
solution:  
 
Acquiring 15’ utility easement across Louise Smith property: The sewer main that runs east from 
Young Rd. along Mathias Ave. was blocked with Debris. The Borough’s Public Works Department 
worked with the Sewer Department to locate the blockage and fix the problem. When the blocked 

8A



area of line was located it was determined that it runs on private property underneath a house. The 
Borough has decided to relocate the sewer main so that it runs the other direction on Mathias Ave., 
then down a utility easement to the sewer main on Lutak Rd. During the course of construction the 
utilities will be accessible to Norm Smith property in a much more economical manner than is 
presently possible. The survey was conducted in July of 2014. Please see the diagram below. 
 

 
 
 
Property owner Louise Smith has agreed to grant the Borough this 15’ wide utility easement by 
gaining the ownership of the same square footage of ROW on Mathias (approximately 3,800 sq.ft) as 
compensation. The next step in the planning/development process for proposed utility easement is to 
seek a determination from the Planning Commission that the vacation is consistent with the Borough 
code and to recommend that the Assembly formally vacate the ROW. Please see the attached plat 
showing the property in question. 
 
To arrive at this determination, staff spoke with property owners, conducted site visits, reviewed all 
applicable local and state laws, and performed general research on similar instances. Through this 
research, the Borough discovered: 
 

- The ROW is currently undeveloped, and is unlikely to be developed in the future; 
- The ROW was reserved for street/roadway purposes; 



- The ROW has not been used for through traffic for well since Mathias Ave. was originally 
platted; 

- No public money has been expended on this portion of ROW since Mathias Ave. was originally 
platted; 

- If the subject area is vacated, all the adjacent properties will still have legal access. 
 

Alaska Statutes Sec.29.40.120 set forth a procedure whereby the Borough can vacate right-of-way on 
a petition. The petition shall be filed with the platting authority. Therefore, it must conduct a public 
hearing before the Planning Commission and accept evidence on whether or not the ROW is 
unnecessary for present or prospective public use. If it finds that the ROW is not necessary for public 
use, then the Assembly may formally vacate the ROW.  
 
Discussion: 
 
The subject area is currently zoned Single Residential. The intent of the single residential zone is to 
provide for and protect areas for low density, individual home sites and quiet residential uses. All new 
development in this zone should be planned to maintain and enhance the single-unit residential 
character of the existing neighborhood. New development areas included in this zone should be 
designed and developed to provide residential areas on low volume streets sheltered from other 
existing or proposed uses. The area is served by, or intended to have, the necessary level of public 
utilities and an adequate transportation system as deemed appropriate for the planned use. 
 
Also, the Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan encourages this area to be designated for 
residential development on the Future Growth Maps. It states… “Actions to encourage infill, and 
identify logical utility and road extension areas are a responsibility of this Comprehensive Plan to 
allow for orderly future growth.” (Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan, Page 168 & 169). 
   
Obviously, the proposed use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and policies. The easement 
across Louise Smith property will help to support reasoned utility extension and enhance the 
residential vibrancy through vacating said ROW. 
 
On 04/06, the Borough notified, in writing, all persons who own property within 200 feet of the 
proposed vacation, giving information on the location of the vacation. Please see the attached mailing 
list. As of today, the Borough has not received any written comments. The public hearing will be 
advertised in the local newspaper on 04/09.  
 
Next Steps  
  
 The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the requested vacation. The Planning 

Commission shall make its recommendation to the Assembly regarding the request. 
 If the Assembly grants the vacation request, the Borough will have the vacated land surveyed 

and replatted by a registered land surveyor in a format suitable for filing with the State 
Recorder’s Office. 

 An Assembly resolution will be adopted to authorize the disposal of any vacated rights-of-way. 
The resolution shall contain a statement that the Assembly found the property surplus to its 
needs as a right-of-way. 

 



PS: If the request was to not move forward, the use could remain as is.  
 
Thank you very much for considering this. 





PRIMARYOWNER SECONDARYOWNER COMPANY TAXIDNO ADDRESS LOTSIZE CITY STATE COUNTRY ZIPCODE
MARJORIE WARD N. TAYLOR Part Sen.Cit.Exempt/ N.TAYLOR C‐690‐05‐0100 BOX 208 0.49 HAINES AK US 99827
ROBERT E. E. PLUCKER MARGARET M. PLUCKER MARGARET PLUCKER C‐690‐04‐0B00 BOX 1394 0.524 HAINES AK US 99827
ELZA A. THOMPSON <Null> <Null> C‐690‐04‐0D00 P.O. BOX 773545 0.653 OCALA FL US 34477
TIMOTHY B. WARD <Null> <Null> C‐690‐03‐0200 PO BOX 208 0.2841 HAINES AK US 99827
KAREN TAUG OLE TAUG III c/o Alaska Realty Tax Service C‐690‐03‐0100 P.O. BOX 34555 0.5677 JUNEAU AK US 99803
NORMAN L. SMITH JR. SUZANNE VUILLET‐SMITH SUZANNE VUILLET SMITH C‐690‐05‐0200 BOX 5 0.85 HAINES AK US 99827
ROBERT E. E. PLUCKER MARGARET M. PLUCKER MARGARET PLUCKER C‐690‐04‐0B00 BOX 1394 0.524 HAINES AK US 99827
LEMMIE L. SPRADLIN <Null> Senior Citizen Exempt C‐690‐08‐0A00 P.O. BOX 386 0.3013 HAINES AK US 99827
ERWIN N. HERTZ <Null> <Null> C‐690‐08‐0E20 BOX 110 0.1291 HAINES AK US 99827
MARVIN SMITH <Null> Portion Senior Citizen Exempt C‐690‐07‐0000 BOX 38 1.8313 HAINES AK US 99827
CAROL WALDO WILLARD WALDO Portion Senior Citizen Exempt C‐690‐06‐0000 BOX 274 1.289 HAINES AK US 99827
ERWIN N. HERTZ <Null> Senior Citizen Exempt C‐690‐08‐0B00 BOX 110 0.5997 HAINES AK US 99827
CARLOS JIMENEZ SIERRA JIMENEZ <Null> C‐690‐08‐0C00 BOX 962 0.482 HAINES AK US 99827



  

HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. xx-xx-xxx 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE HAINES BOROUGH AMENDING HAINES BOROUGH CODE TITLE 
18 SECTION 18.100.025 TO ALLOW LOT LINE ADJUSTMENTS AND LOT CONSOLIDATIONS 
RESULTING IN LOT(S) NON-CONFORMING AS TO SIZE 

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 
 

       Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and the adopted amendment 
shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

 
       Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to any person or 

circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to other persons or 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 
Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
Section 4. Purpose.  This ordinance amends Title 18 Section 18.100.025 to allow lot line adjustments and 
lot consolidations resulting in lot(s) non-conforming as to size. 
 
NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
  STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 
 

HBC 18.100.020 Platting of subdivision, lot line adjustment and lot consolidation required.  

Any division of land within the borough which results in a subdivision, or any shifting or eliminating of 
property lines resulting in a lot line adjustment or lot consolidation shall be surveyed and a plat thereof 
approved and recorded, pursuant to the provisions of this chapter, HBC 18.60.010 through 18.60.020, and 
AS 29.40 and 40.15, as amended from time to time. 

A. Subdivision Defined. “Subdivision” means a division of a tract or parcel of land into two or more lots, 
sites, or other divisions and includes re-subdivisions and, when appropriate to the context, relates to the 
process of subdividing or to the land or areas subdivided. 

B. Lot Line Adjustment Defined. “Lot line adjustment” is defined as the shifting of a property line that does 
not result in: 

1. The creation of additional lots. 

2. The creation of new nonconforming lots, including: 

a. A lot of less than 65 feet of width. 

b. A lot of less than the minimum size applicable to the zoning district. 

c. A lot where development or utility becomes located within the setback as a result of the lot line 
adjustment. 

3. The increase of nonconformity of an existing nonconforming lot. 

Draft 
10B1

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2318.60.010
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2318.60.020
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2329.40
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2340.15


4. The newly adjusted lot exceeding 200 percent of the area of the original lot, with the exception of lots less 
than the minimum lot size, in which case the newly adjusted lot shall not exceed 150 percent of the 
minimum lot size specified for the zone. 

C. Lot Consolidation Defined. “Lot consolidation,” also referred to as “lot line vacation,” is the elimination 
of a lot line or lines that divide multiple lots and results in the consolidation of multiple lots into fewer lots 
or one lot. 

1. The result shall not impair adequate access, access easements or rights-of-way to existing lots. 

2. The result shall not create a nonconforming lot or increase the nonconformity of an existing 
nonconforming lot. (Ord. 09-03-201 § 4; Ord. 06-07-148) 

HBC 18.100.025 Exceptions. 

A. The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to transfers of interest in land pursuant to court order. 

B. The manager shall have the authority to waive the surveying requirement for a lot consolidation if it is 
determined that the surveyor can prepare plat documents from accurate and current data for the properties 
being consolidated. (Ord. 09-03-201 § 4) 

C. HBC 18.100.020(B) and (C) do not apply to lot line adjustments and lot consolidations between two 
or more nonconforming lots, as long as no additional nonconforming lots are created, and the 
proposed lots as adjusted will comply with other requirements, including but not limited to setbacks 
and parking as prescribed by the applicable use zone. 

 



 
 
March 13, 2015  PND 102029.10 
 
 
Shawn Bell 
Interim Harbormaster 
Haines Borough 
P.O. Box 1209 
Haines, Alaska 99827 
  
Re:   South Portage Cove Harbor Expansion  
        65% Design Review Submittal 
  
 
Dear Mr. Bell: 
  
PND has prepared the 65% design review submittal for the South Portage Cove Harbor Expansion project. 
Enclosed please find 10 sets of review documents for distribution to HB staff and the Port and Harbor Advisory 
Committee (PHAC).  The submittal contains plans, project schedule and an updated cost estimate for the project 
at approximately 65% design completion.  

 

Scope of Improvements  

The scope of improvements under this phase of the project generally includes the following: 

• 700 Ft Permeable Wave Barrier 
• Entrance, basin expansion and inner harbor dredging along A & B Floats 
• Rough graded parking area to allow upland disposal of a portion of the dredge spoils 
• Relocation of existing sewer outfall line to allow dredging and wave barrier construction 

 
 

Scope and Design Issues 

PND has updated several design items since the 35% design review submittal. A summary of the most significant 
items follows. 

1. Dredging: The dredging limits in the existing harbor basin have been modified to reflect the changes 
requested by the Borough. Dredging to the west of the existing boat launch ramp has been deleted to 
allow for continued use of that facility without undermining the toe of the ramp.  Dredging below the 
work floats at the north end of the harbor to -6’ MLLW elevation was added.  Dredging around the fuel 
dock, ice chute and inside the transient float has increased.  Dredging along the headwalk of the new float 
system was increased to allow more vessel maneuvering space between the float and shore.    

2. Demolition:  Demolition of the Seaplane Float and partial demolition of the Transient Float were added 
to the scope of improvements.  Please let us know if you wish to salvage these floats for the Borough or 
whether they are to become the Contractor’s responsibilities to dispose.  There are some electrical 
services on the transient float and an electrical demolition plan will need to be developed in the future, 
but has not been included in the 65% design submittal.   

3. Upland Development:  PND has continued development of the upland parking and staging area. It was 
determined that significant storm water runoff flows into the existing ditch adjacent to the Memorial 
Park.  We have included additional storm drain features to ensure the future harbor basin is not 
inundated with freshwater, which can result in surface freezing within the basin.  There are four existing 
outfalls within the upland fill area to be redirected.  The northernmost, a 24-inch CMP outfall, originating 

10D1



South Portage Cove Harbor  Page 2 of 4 
March 13, 2015 

 
9360 Glacier Hwy Suite 100 · JUNEAU, ALASKA 99801 · Phone 907.586.2093 · Fax 907.586.2099 

 

at a catch basin on the west side of Front Street has not been located by PND or HB to date - it is 
possibly buried in the roadway slope.  Please take steps to determine the location of this outfall so we 
may design an extension for it through the new fill area.   

The crushed aggregate base course for the upland parking area has been deleted and the parking area 
surface will now be constructed with 4-inch minus shot rock.  This allows the newly placed fill to dewater 
and settle until such time as the final grading/landscaping commences in a future phase of work.   

4. Memorial Park:  The existing park will be surrounded by the proposed upland parking area. HB has 
requested PND estimate costs for relocating the park to the southern end of the site. We are currently 
assessing the impacts and costs of this move and plan to submit a preliminary cost estimate directly. 

5. Wastewater Outfall Pipe:  The wastewater outfall pipe alignment has been located to the south around 
the dredge basin and wave barrier.  After preliminary design of the outfall with an initial alignment 
through the dredge basin, PND determined that the new route would result in a cost savings as well as 
less environmental and construction risk to the Borough.  

The existing sewer outfall pipe is buried in a shallow trench below the harbor basin. Dredging activity will 
develop cuts nearly 25’ deep in some locations thus interfering with this line. At 35% design, our plan 
was to dredge a portion of the basin while keeping the exiting line intact. Under this option, once the 
initial dredging was completed a new sewer outfall line would be constructed, installed and connected to 
the existing line in the uplands. Upon proceeding with design development, this plan was abandoned due 
to excessive costs, risk and schedule concerns. The rationale in this decision is as follows: 

a. It was determined that at the transition between the dredged region and the uplands the depth of the 
trench excavation would need to be 25 feet or more down to elevations around -17 feet MLLW.  The 
extent of the excavation coupled with the tidal inundation of the trench will result in significant cost 
to install the new outfall through this region.  Either significant trench slope layback or sheet pile 
shoring would be required, both of which added considerable costs.  

b. Under the initial outfall route, dredging would be completed along the outfall alignment prior to 
outfall construction. As a result trenching from a barge becomes necessary very early in the 
installation process. While the preferred route is longer, the majority of the additional length can be 
installed with conventional excavators without the use of a barge and crane for trenching. The 
segments of the outfall trench that would be excavated from a barge would likely be similar for both 
the initial and the preferred routes. The trench excavation and subsequent pipe installation from the 
barge is the most significant cost item under both options. 

c. Under the initial scenario, dredging would have to be partially completed, stopped for the installation 
of the new outfall and then resumed once the new outfall was installed. This change in construction 
sequence and required schedule coordination results in added costs, especially considering the 
barge(s) that are required for both dredging and the outfall installation. These sequencing costs are 
not incurred under the new route. 

d. Under the initial scenario, pile driving for the wave barrier would have to be coordinated and 
completed in a prescribed sequence so that the new outfall is not damaged or disturbed.  This again, 
becomes a significant coordination and cost item, one not involved with the preferred route.  
Additionally, future pile driving for the new floats would have to be closely monitored to prevent 
damage to the outfall line if it were to remain in the harbor basin.   

e. We considered a temporary outfall to limit the costs incurred for the coordination in dredging and 
pile driving described above. However, to be cost effective the temporary outfall would need to be 
installed along the design alignment to allow it to become part of the permanent outfall. After 
preliminary discussions with the reviewing agencies, PND considers it unlikely that a temporary 
outfall of this nature would be permitted, as it would result in sewerage discharge fully exposed on 
the beach at low tides. A temporary outfall reaching depths that may be agreeable to permitting 
agencies, while avoiding the dredged regions would result in considerable additional costs. PND 



South Portage Cove Harbor  Page 3 of 4 
March 13, 2015 

 
9360 Glacier Hwy Suite 100 · JUNEAU, ALASKA 99801 · Phone 907.586.2093 · Fax 907.586.2099 

 

dismissed the temporary outfall plan, as it would likely involve significant permit review and resulting 
schedule impacts. 

f. Finally an outfall pipe routed through the future floats limits the flexibility in the design and layout of 
future harbor floats. 

 

Project Budget 

The attached cost estimate has been updated to reflect the current scope of improvements developed to a 65% 
design completion level.  It incorporates the Borough’s review and direction since delivery of the 35% design 
documents.  The total project budget including 8% contingency and all known indirect costs is estimated at 
$21.12 million. The 65% estimate is approximately $0.53 million less than PND’s initial 2014 planning level 
budget prepared prior to the commencement of the design phase.  

 

State and Federal Permit Applications & Compensatory Mitigation Plan    

PND’s sub consultant, Hart Crowser (HC), is performing regulatory due diligence studies for the project.  HC is 
nearing completion of the Biological Assessment (BA) and an Ecological Functional Assessment (EFA) both of 
which have been submitted to the Borough for review.  The preferred Compensatory Mitigation Plan, suggested 
by Takshanuk Watershed Council, involves work in the Mud Bay area for beach restoration at the 7 Echoes site.  
This plan has been further studied by PND resulting in implementation cost concerns and potential property 
issues.  HC is now evaluating a reduction in the scope of the 7 Echoes mitigation project while concurrently 
investigating other mitigation options including in lieu fees through SEAL Trust.  The mitigation development 
process has resulted in a delay in the submittal of the federal permit application and an adjustment of the schedule 
has been made accordingly.  We request the Borough’s input on its preferred compensatory mitigation efforts for 
this project.  

PND has contacted the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation and the Environmental Protection 
agency regarding the wastewater outfall relocation.  Both agencies require further review of a developed plan. 
With HB’s approval of the new outfall alignment PND will proceed with the required coordination and plan 
reviews.   

 

Project Schedule  

An updated project schedule is enclosed for your review.  While the engineering design elements are on tract, the 
critical path to project completion remains with environmental permitting and associated compensatory 
mitigation tasks.  We have extended the preparation of these study and application documents out to mid-April 
with anticipated regulatory review and permit authorizations by mid-July as can be seen at lines 10 and 11 of the 
attached schedule.  With permits in hand the project can be advertised for construction bids due late August 
followed by execution of a construction contract and NTP by mid-September.  It remains speculative whether a 
contractor would actually mobilize to the site in the fall of 2015 when inclement weather typically begins or wait 
until spring of 2016 to commence work.  We have thus scheduled final project completion for June 30, 2017 to 
align with the grant stipulations.     

The delivery and review of PND’s 65% design submittal is shown on lines 12 and 13.  The design phase remains 
on schedule with the 95% design review package due on May 29th.  To meet that schedule we request your 
written review comments to this 65% design submittal by March 27th. 

 

Public Meeting 

PND is scheduled to present the design at the upcoming Assembly meeting on March 24th.  We plan to address 
the current project scope, design development issues and the permitting and compensatory mitigation process at 
this meeting.  Please let us know if there are other items you would like addressed.       



South Portage Cove Harbor  Page 4 of 4 
March 13, 2015 

 
9360 Glacier Hwy Suite 100 · JUNEAU, ALASKA 99801 · Phone 907.586.2093 · Fax 907.586.2099 

 

PND looks forward to receiving your comments to this 65% design review submittal and would like to schedule a 
review work session at your earliest convenience.  Please feel free to contact us if you have any immediate 
questions or concerns regarding the project. We look forward to continued work with the Borough as we proceed 
with the 95% final design review submittal.   

 
Sincerely, 
PND Engineers, Inc. | Juneau Office 
 
 
 
Dick Somerville, P.E. 
Vice President 
 
Enclosures 



Item Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Amount
1505.1 Mobilization LS All Reqd 10% $1,428,988
1570.1 Erosion and Sediment Control - Upland Measures and Monitoring LS All Reqd $25,000 $25,000
1570.2 Silt Containment Boom with Navigation Lights LF 1,500 $30 $45,000
2060.1 Demolition, Salvage and Disposal LS All Reqd $150,000 $150,000
2201.1 Clearing & Grubbing AC 1.5 $10,000 $15,000
2202.1 Useable Excavation CY 2,500 $12 $30,000
2202.2 Class A Shot Rock Borrow CY 8,000 $30 $240,000
2202.3 Class B Shot Rock Borrow CY 9,000 $22 $198,000
2202.4 Re-Grade Existing Parking Area LS All Reqd $3,000 $3,000
2205.1 Class II Armor Rock CY 6,000 $60 $360,000
2205.2 Class III Armor Rock CY 3,000 $70 $210,000
2401.1 Furnish 16" Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe LF 2,500 $40 $100,000
2401.2 Install 16" Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 1+50 - 6+50 LF 505 $80 $40,400
2401.3 Install 16" Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 6+50 - 7+75 LF 130 $110 $14,300
2401.4 Install 16" Dia. HDPE Wastewater Outfall Pipe Sta. 7+75 - 26+10 LF 1850 $320 $592,000
2401.5 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Diffuser LS All Reqd $15,000 $15,000
2401.6 Connect to Existing 16" Dia. HDPE Outfall Pipe LS All Reqd $8,000 $8,000
2402.1 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type I EA 175 $75 $13,125
2402.2 Furnish and Install Wastewater Outfall Concrete Anchor, Type II EA 20 $100 $2,000
2501.1 8" CPEP Storm Drain Pipe LF 165 $50 $8,250
2501.2 24" CPEP Storm Drain Pipe LF 200 $100 $20,000
2501.3 36" CPEP Storm Drain Pipe LF 540 $130 $70,200
2501.4 Connect to Existing Storm Drain Pipe EA 4 $500 $2,000
2502.1 Storm Drain Manhole Type I EA 3 $10,000 $30,000
2502.2 Storm Drain Manhole Type II EA 1 $5,000 $5,000
2502.3 Storm Drain Oil-Water Separator EA 1 $40,000 $40,000
2502.4 Storm Drain Outfall Structure LS All Reqd $40,000 $40,000
2702.1 Construction Surveying LS All Reqd $150,000 $150,000
2714.1 Geotextile Fabric SY 15,000 $5 $75,000
2881.1 Dredging and Offshore Disposal CY 110,000 $25 $2,750,000
2881.2 Dredging and Onshore Placement at Parking Area CY 25,000 $35 $875,000
2896.1 Furnish & Install Wave Barrier Pile, 24 Inch Dia. X 0.500 Inch Thick w/Sheetpile Wing EA 131 $30,000 $3,930,000
2896.2 Furnish Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick  LF 7,920 $230 $1,821,600
2896.3 Install Bearing Pile, 30 Inch Dia. X 0.750 Inch Thick EA 44 $30,000 $1,320,000
2896.4 Spin Fin®, 30 Inch Dia. Pile EA 42 $5,000 $210,000
2896.5 Install Salvaged 12 Inch Dia. Steel Pile EA 4 $4,000 $16,000
2901.1 Furnish & Install Barrier Waler LF 700 $600 $420,000
2901.2 Furnish & Install Bearing Caps & Connections EA 22 $23,000 $506,000
2901.3 Wave Barrier Amenities - Fenders, Light, Armor Excavation, Misc. LS All Reqd $160,000 $160,000

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION BID PRICE $15,938,863
CONTINGENCY & COMPENSATORY MITIGATION (8%) $1,275,109
PLANNING, ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS & PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT $260,777
ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS, HABITAT STUDIES & PERMITTING $417,740
GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATIONS $878,946
SITE TOPOGRAPHIC & BATHYMETRIC SURVEYS $96,893
FINAL ENGINEERING DESIGN & BID READY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS $1,139,841
CONTRACT ADMIN & CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION $1,115,720

TOTAL RECOMMENDED PROJECT BUDGET $21,123,889

NOTE: Costs for the parking area assume a gravel surface.  Future paving, sidewalks, curbs, utilities, landscaping, restrooms and lighting improvements are not included in 
this estimate.  Pile anodes are not included in this estimate.

HAINES BOROUGH
SOUTH PORTAGE COVE HARBOR EXPANSION

WAVE BARRIER, DREDGING, GRAVEL PARKING AREA & 
SEWER LINE RELOCATION

65% DESIGN COMPLETION - COST ESTIMATE 
MARCH 13, 2015



ID Task Name Start Finish

1 HB NTP for Site Investigations & Final Design Tue 3/18/14 Tue 3/18/14

2 Prepare SAP & Agency Review Mon 3/24/14 Fri 8/22/14

3 Optimize Wave Barrier Configuration - 15% Design Mon 8/11/14 Tue 10/14/14

4 Conduct Geotechnical & Environmental Investigations Tue 8/26/14 Mon 9/22/14

5 Geotechnical & Environmental Sample Analysis Tue 9/23/14 Mon 10/27/14

6 Prepare Environmental Soil Characterization Report Tue 10/28/14 Tue 11/25/14

7 Prepare Final Geotechnical Report Tue 10/28/14 Fri 3/27/15

8 Prepare 35% Preliminary Design Dwgs Wed 10/15/14 Wed 12/17/14

9 HB Review 35% Design Submittal Thu 12/18/14 Fri 1/9/15

10 Prepare Permit Applications & Compensatory Mitigation Plan Mon 1/12/15 Fri 4/17/15

11 Agency Reviews and Permit Authorizations Mon 4/20/15 Fri 7/17/15

12 Prepare 65% Design Development Submittal Mon 1/12/15 Fri 3/13/15

13 HB Review 65% Documents Mon 3/16/15 Fri 3/27/15

14 Prepare 95% Final Design Submittal Mon 3/30/15 Fri 5/29/15

15 HB Review 95% Documents Mon 6/1/15 Fri 6/12/15

16 Stamped Bid Ready Contract Documents Mon 6/15/15 Fri 7/17/15

17 Reproduce Plan Sets, Advertise & Open Construction Bids Mon 7/20/15 Tue 8/25/15

18 Assembly Award, Contract, NTP for Construction Contract Wed 8/26/15 Fri 9/11/15

19 Submittals, Steel Fabrication & Delivery Mon 9/14/15 Wed 6/15/16

20 Anticipated In Water Work Restrictions Fri 4/1/16 Wed 6/15/16

21 Construction to Substantial Completion Mon 9/14/15 Wed 5/31/17

22 Punch List and Final Completion Thu 6/1/17 Fri 6/30/17

3/18

M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A
2014 2015 2016 2017

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Rolled Up Task

Rolled Up Split

Rolled Up Milestone

Rolled Up Progress

External Tasks

Project Summary

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

Progress

Deadline

SOUTH PORTAGE COVE HARBOR EXPANSION
 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

WAVE BARRIER,  DREDGING, SEWER OUTFALL & PARKING AREA ROUGH GRADE

PND No. 102029
March 13, 2015
















































	04-16-15 Agenda
	Mar. 12, 2015 pc minutes
	Apr 16, 2015 Staff report
	8A Packet
	10B1 Lot Line Adjustment
	10D1 S. Portage Cove Harbor Expansion



